
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING December 16, 2015   Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY DECEMBER 16, 2015 7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CALIFORNIA 92252 

AGENDA 
 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. 
 

3. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Pgs. 1-5 

  4. 
 
  5. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  6. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
Members of the public may address the Board at this time with regard to matters within the Board’s 
jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda.  State law prohibits the Board of Directors from 
discussing or taking action on items not included on the  agenda.  Members of the public will have the 
opportunity for public comment on any item listed on the agenda when it is addressed on the agenda.  
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes or less. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will be adopted in total by one 
action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any individual or organization 
interested in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard.  

A. Approve Draft Minutes of the November 18, 2015 Regular Meeting of the Board 
of Directors. 

 
Pgs. 6-60 
 
 
Pgs. 61-62 
 
 
Pg. 63 
 
 
Pgs. 64-70 
 
 
 

7. 
 
 

  8. 
 

   
  9. 
 
  
10. 
 
 
 

14/15 AUDIT PRESENTATION FROM FEDAK & BROWN, CPA’S 
Recommend that the Board receive presentation, ask questions, accept and file. 
 
EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION STUDY 
Recommend that the Board accept and file the Compensation Study as presented. 
 
NEXTERA SOLAR PROJECT 
Recommend that the Board receive information and direct General Manager on action to be taken. 
 

WELL 14 REHABILITATION 
Recommend that the Board receive report for information only. 
 
 

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING December 16, 2015   Page 2 of 2 
 

Pgs. 71-72 11. 
 
 
12. 

ELECTION OF BOARD OFFICERS – PRESIDENT AND VICE PRESIDENT 
Recommend that the Board elect President and vice President for calendar year 2016. 
 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

A. LEGISLATIVE AND PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman 
and Director Unger: Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant to report. Next meeting is 
scheduled for January 6, 2015. 

B. FINANCE COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Director Johnson. Next meeting is  
      scheduled for December 28, 2015. 
C.   WATER RESOURCES & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and     
       Director Johnson.  Next Meeting is scheduled for December 29, 2015. 

 
 13. 

 
14. 

 
15. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16. 
 
  
17. 
 
18. 
 
19. 

DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT  
 
GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION – CONFERENCE WITH DISTRICT’S REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR: 
 
At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.8 to consult with the District’s designated Negotiator (Curt Sauer, General Manager) 
regarding the terms and conditions concerning the potential acquisition of the following real 
properties:   
Assessor Parcel Number 06070410600000 tract 5452 lot 23 el reposa rancho – map 68 page 
79 and 80 –   (Steven S. Feary, Owner) 
Assessor Parcel Number 0603231140000, Assessor’s Map Book 0603 Page 23, Tract 2786 
(Barbara Moreland Trust), owner). 
 
FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 
Mojave Water Agency BOD Meeting:  
 
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 
DIRECTORS COMMENTS/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

   

 
 
 
INFORMATION 
 
The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water 
District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 
 
This meeting is scheduled to be broadcast on Time Warner Cable Channel 10 on December 23 at 7:00 pm and December 30 at 7:00 pm . 
 



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

November 18, 2015 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Victoria Fuller 
Bob Johnson 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Rebecca Unger 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Curt Sauer, General Manager 
Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Seth Zielke, Director of Water Resources and Operations 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
Gil Granito, District Counsel, Redwine & Sherrill 
 

GUESTS 28 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

        MSC Luckman/Reynolds, 5/0 to approve the agenda for the November 18, 2015 meeting. 
 
  Fuller  Aye  
  Luckman Aye  
                          Johnson             Aye 
                          Reynolds           Aye 
  Unger   Aye 
                            
 
5. 
 
 
 
 
 
6. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Al Marquez, Sunfair area, Joshua Tree:  Mr. Marquez stated that his calculations for evaporation from a 
public comment he made during a previous JBWD board meeting were not correct.  Mr. Marquez stated 
Board members should consider the Joshua Tree Community Plan in addition to the General Plan and 
Water Management Plan when making decisions. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
MSC Luckman/Johnson, 5/0 to approve Draft Minutes of the November 4, 2015 Regular Meeting of the 
Board of Directors. 
 
             Fuller                Aye  
             Luckman           Aye  

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 1 of 72



                 Johnson             Aye 
                 Reynolds           Aye 
                 Unger                Aye 

            
 
7.    PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF A BASIC MONTHLY FEE ON INACTIVE 
ACCOUNTS 
 
       GM Sauer gave the presentation describing the process of adopting a basic monthly fee on inactive accounts 
and a potential opt out option that is being designed for inactive accountholders who do not wish to maintain a 
water meter or pay the basic monthly fee. 
 
Public Comment: 
Karen Tracy, Citizens Advisory Committee member, and Joshua Tree resident:  The Citizens Advisory 
Committee supports the basic monthly fee for inactive accounts. 
 
Shirley Vickers, Joshua Tree: Ms. Vickers discussed her property taxes, noting how large of a portin of the taxes 
are water related.  Ms. Vickers opposes the inactive meter fee. 
 
Richard Locicero, Copper Mountain home owner, out of town resident:  Mr. Locicero disputed the figures listed 
on the notice of potential money coming into the District as a result of inactive meter fees.  Mr. Locicero 
opposes the inactive meter fee. 
 
Kathryn Davis, Copper Mountain College area:  Ms. Davis stated that she opposes the inactive meter fee.  Ms. 
Davis stated she paid a one-time fee in 2005, and there are no service connections. 
 
Bob Crawford Aberdeen area, Joshua Tree:  Mr. Crawford opposes inactive meter fees. 
 
Cookie Bells Burrow, Joshua Tree home owner, out of town resident:  Ms. Bells Burrow opposes the full basic 
monthly fee for inactive accounts, and suggests the Board consider a smaller fee for inactive accounts. 
 
Deborah Rucker, Monument area, Joshua Tree:  Ms. Rucker has 3 parcels and is opposed to inactive meter fees. 
 
Al Marquez, Joshua Tree resident:  Mr. Marquez opposes inactive account fees.  Mr. Marquez also stated that he 
does not believe the Citizens Advisory Committee represents ratepayers.  
 
Kenny Pitcher, Joshua Tree resident:  Mr. Pitcher opposes the inactive meter fee. 
 
Jeffrey Wells, out of town resident:  Mr. Wells stated he purchased property as an investment, that there is no 
meter in the box on his property, and suggests a smaller fee for inactive meters. 
 
Zubir Edmond  (Zak), Joshua Tree property owner, out of town resident:  Mr. Edmond states he  purchased 
property as an investment, and does not believe the basic monthly fee for inactive accounts to be affordable.  Mr. 
Edmond opposes the inactive account fee. 
 
David Holly Sunfair area, Joshua Tree:  Mr. Holly states the basic monthly fee for inactive accounts is not 
affordable; Mr. Holly opposes the inactive account fee. 
 
Luke Sabala, Citizens Advisory Committee member, and Joshua Tree resident:  Mr. Sabala states the fees are 
needed by the District because of increased costs for things such as the aquifer, the need to buy water, and to pay 
into an aging infrastructure.  Mr. Sabala states we should consider the future. 

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 2 of 72



 
Shari Long, Citizens Advisory Committee member, and Joshua Tree resident:  Ms. Long states there should be 
consideration for the costs of recharge water, the Chromium 6 issue, that costs are going up, and all people who 
have the benefit of meters need to chip in. 
 
Bob Crawford, Joshua Tree: Mr. Crawford commented that he believes there should be an increase in fees for 
users of water, not for those who are not using water.   
 
Cookie Bells Burrow, Joshua Tree homeowner, out of town resident: Ms. Burrow suggested building water 
towers to store water. 
 
Richard Fountain, past JBWD Board Director, and Joshua Tree resident:  Mr. Fountain suggested a fee of 50% 
of the basic monthly fee, as was done in previous years. Mr. Fountain suggested that if a person is paying the full 
rate for a meter that they put it in the ground. 
 
Kenny Pitcher, Joshua Tree resident:  Mr. Pitcher questioned the difference between a prepaid meter and no 
meter, since both are paying standby fees. 
 
General Manager, Curt Sauer stated that he read all protest letters received by 4:45 this afternoon. GM Sauer 
clarified that every property owner pays a standby fee – and the amount of standby fees for active or inactive 
meters is lower than the standby fees for properties without a meter. GM Sauer invited anyone with questions to 
contact him to discuss further after the meeting. 
 
Director Unger pointed out the transparency of the JBWD with meetings, described the District tours as an 
opportunity to learn about the District and what is required for water service. Director Unger pointed out that a 
property is of a higher value with a meter than without a meter. 
 
Director Johnson stated the funds from inactive meter fees are a means necessary to fund the numerous 
expenditures the JBWD is facing.  
 
Director Fuller stated that regarding equity and fairness – everyone should share in the responsibility of 
maintaining our infrastructure.   
 
Director Reynolds stated he believes charging for inactive accounts to be an unethical attempt to increase 
revenue.  Director Reynolds would support charging future inactive accounts, but not current inactive accounts. 
 
Director Luckman stated policies of the District need to be followed as they are in place. Luckman described 
some of the costs to running the District, including the rising costs of electricity.  Director Luckman said she 
supports fees for inactive accounts and has from the beginning.  Director Luckman pointed out that according to 
the current District rules and regulations that a meter cannot be purchased and not installed, thus, there are not 
future inactive accounts. 
 
MSC Luckman/Fuller, 4/1 to adopt Resolution 15-952 
 
                 Fuller                Aye  
             Luckman           Aye  
                 Johnson             Aye 
                 Reynolds           No 
                 Unger                Aye 
 
 

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 3 of 72



 
8.     HOLIDAY OFFICE SCHEDULE 
        Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller gave the report. 
 
Public Comment: 
None. 
 
MSC Unger/Luckman, 5/0 to authorize the District office to close on Christmas Eve, Thursday December 24, 
and on New Year’s Eve, Thursday, December 31, and offer employees one half day off with pay (4 hours) either 
on Christmas Eve or  New Year’s Eve as has been the tradition for many years. 
 
             Fuller                Aye  
             Luckman           Aye  
                 Johnson             Aye 
                 Reynolds           Aye 
                 Unger                Aye 
         
        
9.    STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS                    
 

A. LEGISLATIVE AND PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE:  Vice President Luckman and Director 
Unger:  Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant, gave the report.  JBWD will be at the Farmers 
Market on Saturdays in November and off from the Farmers Market in December, January, and 
February.  The Fall Native Plant Sale on November 14th at the Mojave Desert Land Trust was a success. 
JBWD will have a booth at the holiday market on November 27 – 29. Next meeting is scheduled for 
January 6, 2016. 

B. FINANCE COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Director Johnson: Discussion of finance planning with 
regards to financing Chromium VI, and possible inactive meter revenue.  Next meeting is scheduled for 
November 30th. 

C. WATER RESOURCES & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE:  Vice President Luckman and Director 
Johnson: Seth Zielke gave the same presentation at the committee meeting as in Item 8 today.  Next 
meeting is scheduled for November 24th. 

 

10.     DISTRICT COUNSEL REPORT 
          Counselor Granito reported on SB 555 effective January 1, 2016, which requires each urban water 
supplier to submit a water loss audit annually beginning October 1, 2017 to the Department of  
Water Resources.  
   
11.     GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
          General Manager Curt Sauer shared an update about Nextera.  GM Sauer met with Nextera 
representatives on November 12, as they are considering ways to obtain water for their solar project.  
Nextera is considering buying water outside the JBWD and trucking it in, and/or buying soil stabilizer that 
will reduce their water requirements by 66%, as well as pursuing a state exemption from the emergency 
conservation regulations from SWRCB office of enforcement. 
Nextera has contacted private well owners in an attempt to purchase water, and has also looked into 
digging a new well through the County. 
          Seth Zielke, Director of Water Resources and Operations, reported on the groundwater recharge 
project – 684 acre feet of water from the State Water project has been received.   
  

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 4 of 72



12. 
 
 
 
 
 
13. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
14. 
 
 
15. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 
Mojave Water Agency BOD Meeting: December 10th :  Mickey Luckman 
Mojave Water Agency BOD Meeting: November 19th:  Victoria Fuller 
Colorado Regional Board Meeting November 19th: Mickey Luckman 
ACWA 2015 Fall Conference: December 1-4 
 
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
Victoria Fuller and Mickey Luckman reported on a webinar regarding 218 and the ACWA bill to make 
tiered rates legal and Lifeline water rates. 
Mike Reynolds and Mickey Luckman reported on the ASBCSD meeting hosted by MWA. 
Mickey Luckman attended a Groundwater Management Act teleconference with Department of Water 
Resources discussing what it takes to form a groundwater management agency, and about the 
Groundwater Management Act. 
 
DIRECTORS COMMENTS/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
All directors expressed appreciation to the public for their participation. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MSC Fuller/Reynolds, 5/0 to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of November 18, 
2015 at 9:15 PM. 
 
                          Fuller  Aye  
  Luckman Aye 
                          Johnson             Aye 
                          Reynolds           Aye 
                          Unger   Aye 
  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted:  
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Curt Sauer, General Manager and Board Secretary 
 

 

  
 
 

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 5 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 6 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 7 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 8 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 9 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 10 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 11 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 12 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 13 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 14 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 15 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 16 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 17 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 18 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 19 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 20 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 21 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 22 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 23 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 24 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 25 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 26 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 27 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 28 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 29 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 30 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 31 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 32 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 33 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 34 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 35 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 36 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 37 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 38 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 39 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 40 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 41 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 42 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 43 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 44 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 45 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 46 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 47 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 48 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 49 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 50 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 51 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 52 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 53 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 54 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 55 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 56 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 57 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 58 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 59 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 60 of 72



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
MEETING AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors      December 16, 2015 
            
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
 
Prepared by: Curt Sauer      
 
 
TOPIC: Employee Compensation Study 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: That the Board accept and file the Compensation Study as presented. 
 
 
ANALYSIS: As part of the August 2013 Memorandum of Understanding with the Union, the District 
agreed to a compensation survey for the general unit employees. In March of 2015, the Board approved 
a contract with Koff and Associates to conduct a District-wide employee compensation study, for both 
union and nonunion employees.  
 
The Board is not bound by any agreement in the MOU to implement any of the findings. The MOU 
does state that the findings of the compensation study “may be a matter subject to future negotiations 
between the District and the Union.” 
 
The current MOU expires September 2, 2016. The Union is to submit an outline of conceptual ideas to 
the District between 90 -150 days (February to June) prior to expiration of the MOU. I would expect 
the Union to include the findings of the study in their list. Therefore, the Board will need to understand 
the findings and provide direction to the General Manager and his co-negotiator concerning 
compensation. 
 
There is one item I wish to emphasize with this compensation study. That is, this study addresses all 
positions, rather than only union positions.  I believe this approach leads to internal equitable 
consistency for all District employees.  
 
Mr. Georg Krammer, CEO of Koff and Assoc. is with us tonight to present the Compensation Study 
process and findings to the Board. 
 
The purpose of the presentation is to inform the Board.  If the Board finds the study acceptable, the 
Board should accept and file the Study. Actions to implement any changes to total compensation for 
the union employees will be at the discretion of the Board. Your guidance will be needed as we move 
into negotiations with the union beginning in June of 2016. 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 61 of 72



 
STRATEGIC PLAN ITEM:  
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 62 of 72



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
MEETING AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors      December 16, 2015 
            
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
 

Prepared by: Curt Sauer      
 
 
TOPIC: Update on NextEra  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive information and direct General Manager on action to be taken. 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
 
I met with NextEra reps on Thursday November 12. At that time they were considering various ways 
to obtain water for the project. These included: 
-Buying water from well owners 
-Trucking in water 
-Encouraging the District to apply for an Alternative Compliance Plan from SWRCB 
-Drilling their own well. 
 
These items will be discussed, as well as information expected to be received from the County and 
NextEra during the first part of the week of December 14th. 
  
 
 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ITEM:  
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 63 of 72



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
MEETING AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors      December 16, 2015 
           
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
 
Prepared by: Seth J. Zielke, Director of Water Resources and Operations   
   
 
 
TOPIC: Well 14 Rehabilitation 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: That the Board receive report for information only. 
 
ANALYSIS: The Joshua Basin Water District’s (“District”) Well 14 was drilled in 1982.  Well 14’s 
original production capacity was approximately 2,100 gallons per minute (“gpm”).  Well 14’s current 
production capacity is approximately 1,700 gpm, which is the highest of the five District wells and 
accounts for approximately 35% of the District’s total well production capacity.  Well 14 is located in 
the District’s largest pressure zone, which is Zone (C).  Zone (C) contains the largest number of service 
connections of any zone, with approximately 1,900 connections, or 43% of the Districts entire service 
connection total.  Zone (C) also has the highest storage capacity of any District zone with over 7.0 
million gallons.  Over the last 5 years (2010’ – 2014’) Well 14 has an annual production average of 
approximately 645 acre-feet per year, that is the highest production average of any District well over 
that time period.  The next closest annual production average for that time period is Well 10 with an 
annual production average of approximately 458 acre-feet per year. 
 
The statistics above indicate that Well 14 is the District’s most critical and highest priority well in 
terms of production and meeting demand.  The Board recognized and acknowledged the importance of 
Well 14 when they adopted the District’s Revised Capital Budget on September 2, 2015 that included 
$168, 241.22 to rehabilitate Well 14. 
 
Since the Board’s adoption of that budget, District staff have been working diligently with Dudek 
Engineering (“Dudek”) to develop a bid document and specifications for the rehabilitation of Well 14 
in order to go out for bid.  During this process the District has learned of new developments that will 
impact the cost of rehabilitating Well 14, and could delay the start date for this work. 
 
The initial bid document for Well 14 was developed without shutting down the well and removing the 
equipment and major components (well casing, bowls, well pump, shaft, and well motor) for 
examination.  It was determined that having Well 14 down for an extended period of time to remove 
these major components and have them shipped to a supplier for examination would severely hinder 
the District’s ability to meet demand within the zone that Well 14 supplies.  It was determined that this 
process would also prove very costly to pay for the shipping and examination of the major components 
if the supplier determine that they would need to be replaced in the end.   
 
 
 

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 64 of 72



District staff attempted to include the examination of the equipment as part of the initial bidding 
documents. However, the lack of available information resulted in high bidder uncertainty and an 
extended time period for the well to be out of service.   
 
As part of the initial bidding process, District staff conducted a pre-bid meeting with interested well 
rehabilitation contractors.  At that meeting the contractors identified that due to the uncertainty of the 
condition of the major components, and the time required to complete the examination analysis, it 
would be less expensive overall to replace the well’s major components.  Under this scenario, the 
major components can be ordered prior to taking the well offline. Once received, the equipment can 
quickly be installed, with the well offline for a minimum duration.  
 
Additionally, it was determined that Well 14 maintenance records indicated that the well has not been 
rehabilitated nor have any major components been replaced since it was drilled in 1982.  
Unfortunately, due to this deferred maintenance, Well 14’s useful life, and that of its major 
components, has exceeded its acceptable useful life of 30 years as defined for California Special 
Districts, and pursuant to Dudek’s Well 14 Engineering Considerations letter dated September 1, 2015 
(attached).  
 
Well 14’s original production capacity was approximately 2,100 gpm.  Well 14’s current production 
capacity is approximately 1,700 gpm (representing a loss of approximately 15% of production 
capacity).  This reduction in the capacity of the well, as compared to the originally constructed 
capacity, indicates the efficiency of the well pump has degraded over time and will continue to degrade 
resulting in even less production capacity.  Therefore, to provide the same amount of water from Well 
14, the District is required to increase energy input to the well to overcome both the wear on the pump 
and the inefficiency of the pump and motor.  This increased energy input results in increased energy 
costs. These costs will continue to increase as the pump and motor continue to wear and decrease in 
efficiency.  
 
As a result of the many years of deferred maintenance, and for the reasons previously discussed, Dudek 
does not recommend pursuing the rehabilitation of Well 14, but instead concurs with the well 
rehabilitation contractors that replacing the major components of Well 14 and cleaning the well should 
occur. 
 
Based on this new available information, it is clear that Well 14 is operating beyond the typical life 
expectancy, and that rehabilitation of the equipment has not been completed in over 30 years.  
Considering the importance of Well 14 to the District in relation to meeting ongoing water demand and 
the fact that taking the well offline for an extended period of time would significantly impair the 
District’s ability to meet demands during peak periods, it is the conclusion that strong consideration is 
warranted to replacing the existing equipment at this time.  Replacement will assure that Well 14 is 
reliably available for water production for many years without the need for significant maintenance 
costs, and that the District’s primary water supply well is operating as efficiently as possible to hold 
down the District’s operating costs.  Replacement of the well’s major components, coupled with the 
cleaning of the well, will also support ongoing Chromium 6 mitigation efforts that the District is 
currently undergoing by ensuring Well 14 is operational, when and if, Chromium 6 treatment will need 
to be designed, constructed, and implemented at the well.  
 
Because of the importance of Well 14 as described, the timing for performing the replacement of the 
major components and the cleaning of the well is critical.  It is recommended that if a well 
rehabilitation contractor cannot guarantee the completion of this work by no later than May 31, 2016, 
than the work should not begin until fall of 2016.  This will allow for the District to have sufficient 
production capacity through the summer of 2016 in order to meet its demands.  District staff continues 

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 65 of 72



to work with Dudek to obtain additional cost information and estimates.  As information is obtained the 
Board will be apprised.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  To be determined 
 
Preliminary estimates obtained by the District from well equipment suppliers for the well equipment 
and pump suggest the cost for replacing these Well 14 major components will be approximately 
$166,000 - $215,000, not including delivery of material or replacing the motor. The motor will need to 
be shipped to a supplier to determine the condition and need for replacement or rehabilitation. 
Additional costs to perform the work and clean the well are being evaluated.  It is anticipated that the 
cost to complete the replacement of Well 14’s major components and properly clean the well will be in 
excess of double the original budgeted amount of $168, 241.22. 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 66 of 72



 

 

 

September 1, 2015 

 

 

Curt Sauer, General Manager 

Joshua Basin Water District 

61750 Chollita Road 

Joshua Tree, California  92252 

 

Subject: Well 14 Replacement Considerations 

 

Dear Mr. Sauer: 

As part of the District’s ongoing rehabilitation and replacement of its critical water supply and 

distribution facilities, District staff is currently evaluating the condition of the water supply wells.  

Recently, Well 10 was rehabilitated, including cleaning of the well and rehabilitation of the pump, 

motor and other equipment.  Having completed Well 10, the next well for service is Well 14. 

Well 14 is the District’s largest water supply well, with an original well capacity of approximately 

2,000 to 2,100 gpm.  Recent analysis has identified that the well is producing water at a current rate 

of approximately 1,700 gpm (representing a loss of approximately 15 percent of the well production 

capacity).  Well 14 has been in continuous operation for over 40 years without rehabilitation or 

replacement of the well equipment or cleaning of the well itself.  With the identified loss of 

production capacity and the length of time that the well has been in service, District staff is 

considering options for well cleaning and potential equipment replacement.  The purpose of this 

letter is to identify engineering considerations with regard to Well 14, and provide input into the 

overall upgrade process for Well 14. 

Useful Life 

The District water system is comprised of a number of capital assets, including wells, pumps, 

pipelines, tanks, control equipment, among others.  The useful life of a capital asset is defined to be 

the estimated lifespan of a fixed asset, during which it can be expected to cost-effectively contribute 

to the District’s operations.  The concept of useful life is important in that it is the time beyond which 

the asset ceases to provide a benefit to the ratepayers, costing more to operate on an annual basis than 

new or rehabilitated assets would cost.   

The primary components of Well 14 are the actual groundwater well, the well pump and motor, 

valves and other appurtenances, chemical equipment, and the electrical equipment.  The following 

are the accepted values of useful life for Well 14 components as defined for California Special 

Districts.   

 

 

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 67 of 72



Curt Sauer, General Manager 

Subject: Well 14 Replacement Considerations 

  7039 
 2 September 2015  

 

Equipment Item Accepted Useful Life (yrs) 

Wells 30 

Well Pumps 25 

Pump Motors 25 

Flow Meters 30 

Chlorinators 12 

Appurtenances 20 

Electrical Equipment 25 

Water Mains (4” and less) 50 

Water Mains (6”) 65 

Water Mains (8” and 10”) 75 

Water Mains (12” and greater) 100 

 

As shown in the table, the average useful life for wells and associated equipment is on the order of 25 

to 30 years.  Well 14 has been in operation for over 40 years, without any significant repair, 

rehabilitation or replacement.  For Well 14 to continue to operate in a safe and reliable manner, repair 

and/or replacement of the major equipment is warranted.  As Well 14 is the District’s largest source 

well, replacement of aged equipment is warranted, as loss of Well 14 in an emergency condition (i.e. 

earthquake) would greatly reduce the District’s ability to service the community. 

Figure 1 shows the relationship 

between the various stages of a 

typical equipment life-cycle.  The 

graph shows that over the physical 

life of the equipment, it takes time 

for the benefit of new equipment to 

exceed the capital cost of its 

procurement.  It then moves into a 

phase where the benefit is more than 

it costs to own, operate and maintain 

the equipment.  The equipment 

finishes its life in a stage where the costs of keeping it and the productive time lost to repair the 

equipment is greater than the benefit it provides during the periods when it is operational.  Thus, it is 

important to identify the point in time where retaining a given piece of equipment is no longer 

beneficial so that the equipment can be replaced by purchasing new equipment.  The figure also 

graphically illustrates the different definitions for the useful life of a given piece of equipment: 

economic life, profit life, and physical life.   

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 68 of 72



Curt Sauer, General Manager 

Subject: Well 14 Replacement Considerations 

  7039 
 3 September 2015  

 Physical Life.  The physical life of equipment is identified as the service life. This time 

period ends when equipment can no longer be operated. This stage is greatly impacted by the 

repair and maintenance attention that the machine has been provided over its lifespan. A 

piece of equipment that has not been given adequate maintenance throughout its lifespan will 

deteriorate at a faster rate than a machine that was been given substantial preventative 

maintenance. Thus, the service lives will vary depending on the piece of equipment and the 

amount of upkeep it has been provided.  

 Benefit Life.  Benefit life is the time period where equipment is providing sustained value to 

the District. This is the most desired stage of the equipment life because after this point in 

time the equipment will operate less efficiently.  Thus, this is a critical stage in the equipment 

life to maximize on benefit and efficiencies. Also, the District must be able to identify this 

time period to implement a replacement plan for new equipment, while the existing 

equipment remains useful. 

 Economic Life.  Economic life is defined by decreasing ownership costs and increasing 

operating costs, corresponding to the period when these costs are equivalent.  To maximize 

benefit, the replacement of the equipment should occur before the economic life is reached.  

With respect to Well 14, the well pump, motor and appurtenances are beyond the Benefit Life period 

and District records identify that minimal maintenance has occurred.  Replacement of the equipment 

is recommended to avoid potential equipment failure, causing an emergency condition for the 

District.  Operating efficiency is another primary consideration in defining the replacement needs of 

equipment.  Note that failure of equipment is typically subsequent to many years of potential 

inefficient operation, increasing District operating costs.   

Energy Considerations 

Providing safe drinking water is a highly energy‐intensive activity. At the national level, drinking 

water systems account for three to four percent of U.S. energy use.  At the community level, drinking 

water systems are typically the largest energy consumers accounting for 25 to 40 percent of an 

agency’s total energy cost.  Approximately 80 percent of water processing and distribution costs are 

for electricity.  Energy is needed for groundwater water extraction and conveyance, treatment, water 

storage and distribution.  Energy usage can vary based on water source, facility age, treatment type, 

storage capacity, topography, and system size, which encompasses volume produced and service 

area.  By understanding the energy consumption and taking advantage of energy efficiency 

opportunities, water systems can save money while saving energy.   

Recent energy audits for Well 14 have identified a significant reduction in the capacity of the well, as 

compared to the originally constructed well.  In addition, the efficiency of the well pump has 

degraded slowly over time.  Therefore, to provide the same amount of water from Well 14, the 

District is required to increase energy input to the well to overcome both the wear on the pump and 

the inefficiency of the pump and motor.  Increased energy is increased cost. 

Water and wastewater utilities are complex systems including distribution pipelines, pump stations, 

reservoirs, and various other equipment.  The American Society of Civil Engineers 2013 Report Card 

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 69 of 72



Curt Sauer, General Manager 

Subject: Well 14 Replacement Considerations 

  7039 
 4 September 2015  

for America’s Infrastructure gave the nation’s water and wastewater systems a grade of D.  One of 

the main reasons for the low grade is that much of the infrastructure is reaching the end of its useful 

life.  While some utilities are already taking steps to improve the reliability of their systems, the 

capital improvement programs of many agencies are often focused on emergency repairs, increasing 

system capacity to meet population growth, or making system improvements to satisfy public health 

and environmental regulations.   

The Board of Directors recently approved plan preparation and bidding of the Well 14 Rehabilitation 

Project.  During preparation of the bidding documents, it was evident that the condition of Well 14 

was not completely defined.  Shutting down the well and removing the equipment for examination 

was determined to be detrimental to District operations, as well as very costly.  District staff 

attempted to include the examination of the equipment as part of the bidding documents.  However, 

the lack of available information resulted in high bidder uncertainty.  As part of the bidding at effort, 

District staff conducted a pre-bid meeting with interested well rehabilitation contractors.  At that 

meeting, the contractors identified that, considering the uncertainty and the time required to complete 

the analysis, it would be less expensive overall to replace the well equipment.  Under this scenario, 

the equipment can be ordered prior to taking the well offline.  Once received, the equipment can 

quickly be installed, with the well out of service for a minimum duration.   

Based on the available information, it is clear that the existing equipment is operating well beyond 

the typical life expectancy, and that rehabilitation of the equipment has not been completed in over 

40 years.  Furthermore, the well equipment is exhibiting signs of wear and inefficiency that suggest 

that the equipment may be beyond its beneficial life.  Considering the importance of well 14 to the 

District in relation to meeting ongoing water demand and the fact that taking the well offline for an 

extended period of time would significantly impair the District’s ability to meeting current demand, it 

is the conclusion that strong consideration is warranted to replacing the existing equipment at this 

time.  Replacement will assure that Well 14 is reliably available for water production for many years 

without the need for significant maintenance costs, and that the District’s primary water supply well 

is operating as efficiently as possible to hold down District operating costs.  Replacement of the well 

equipment, coupled with the cleaning of the well, will also support ongoing Chromium 6 mitigation 

efforts that the District is currently undergoing. 

I would be pleased to discuss these thoughts with you at your convenience.  Please do not hesitate to 

contact me if you have any questions or need any additional information. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

DUDEK 

 

 

 

D. Michael Metts, PE 

Contract District Engineer 

 

Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 70 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 71 of 72



Agenda Packet BOD 12-16-15 Page 72 of 72


	Compensation Survey final draft 121615.pdf
	JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT

	NextEra Update 121615 -outline.pdf
	JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT

	Draft Well 14 Staff Report BOD Meeting (2015-12-16).pdf
	JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT




